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Top: Minnesota Street looking south from 

Third North Street, about 1895, where the

commercial district developed parallel and one

block from the central Broadway Boulevard 

Bottom left: Aerial view, 1937, of the center 

of New Ulm, with public squares housing the

Brown County Courthouse (left) and the New

Ulm school (right) flanking the prominent

Center Street.  

Bottom right: German Park, divided into 

north and south units in the 1860s and later

diminished by the construction of railroad

tracks along its eastern edge, still provides the

setting for New Ulm’s most prominent historic

homes along South German Street. 
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1. Public Statutes of the State of Minnesota, 1849–1858 (St.
Paul: Pioneer Printing Co., 1859), 369–71.

2. For a good visual survey of Minnesota city plats up to
1874, see A. T. Andreas, An Illustrated Historical Atlas of the State
of Minnesota (Chicago: A. T. Andreas, 1874).

3. Here and two paragraphs below, see Hildegard B.
Johnson, “The Founding of New Ulm, Minnesota,” American-
German Review, June 1946, p. 8–12; F. W. Johnson, “New Ulm—
Acquisition of the Townsite,” typescript in Brown County
Historical Society, New Ulm; Noel Iverson, Germania, U.S.A.:
Social Change in New Ulm, Minnesota (Minneapolis: University of
Minnesota Press, 1966), 53–71; Alice F. Tyler, “William
Pfaender and the Founding of New Ulm,” Minnesota History 30
(Mar. 1949): 24–35.

3. Comparison of the earlier Meyer plat in the Brown
County Historical Society and the Prignitz plat reveals that
Meyer established the basic armature of the city—including
the grid orientation, street-naming scheme, and reserved land
for German Park—which Prignitz later embellished. The
unfinished edges of the Meyer plat suggest that he had drafted
a larger scheme but only filed the two quarter-sections original-
ly pre-empted for the townsite. The original Prignitz plat seems
to have been lost, but an 1896 copy survives at the Brown
County Courthouse, New Ulm. 

4. Iverson, Germania, 62–66.
5. Rainier Vollmar, “Ideology and Settlement Plan: Case of

Bethlehem, Pennsylvania, and New Ulm, Minnesota,” address
to the Brown County Historical Society, May 18, 1991, tape

recording, Brown County Historical Society; J. Berndt, Ansicht
von New Ulm, Minnesota, 1860, lithograph, in Minnesota His-
torical Society (MHS) map collection. For a counterpoint to
Vollmar’s comments on equality, see La Vern J. Rippley and
Robert J. Paulson, German Bohemians: The Quiet Immigrants
(Northfield, Minn.: St. Olaf College Press, 1995), 143–59,
which discusses the Turners’ elitism toward the German-
speaking Bohemians who also settled in the area.

6. On speculative, railroad, and utopian city planning, see
John W. Reps, The Making of Urban America: A History of Urban
Planning in the United States (Princeton: Princeton University
Press, 1965), 349–413, 439–74. Iverson, Germania, 3–22, dis-
cusses how the higher social status and isolation of the Turners
led the initial ethnic community to develop into a status com-
munity. The expansive gridiron plat foreshadows its non-ethnic,
aspiring nature. 

7. Indeed, New Ulm’s Heritage Preservation Commission
planning study recommends that “the town plat is of major
significance and should be an important focus of the H.P.C.”;
Daniel Hoisington, “New Ulm’s Historic Contexts,” 1998, p. 57,
on file at the State Historic Preservation Office, MHS, and at
the City of New Ulm.

The photos on p. 345 and 348–49 (bottom) are courtesy the Brown
County Historical Society; p. 346–47 is by Eric Mortenson, MHS,
from the plat on loan from the Brown County Recorder’s Office; and
p. 348 (top) is from MHS collections.

In part, the New Ulm plat is distinctive due to its
sheer size. By far the most common practice in Min-
nesota was to plat an “original town” of limited acreage
and then append “additions,” often resulting in a
patchwork of streets and lots. In New Ulm, except for
minor revisions and additions, the original plat has
accommodated development for more than a century.
Blocks whose oldest dwellings are the brick cottages of
early settlers abut blocks of ramblers and split-levels
that housed baby-boomers. Even today, undeveloped
lots in the original plat are for sale.

The size of the plat acted as a hedge against spec-
ulation and resulted in New Ulm’s orderly growth
pattern. German geographer Rainier Vollmar, in an
address to the Brown County Historical Society in
1991, saw the Turner ideal of equality embodied in the
symmetry and similar lot sizes of the plat. He also
noted the significance of siting Turner Hall immedi-
ately adjacent to the central blocks dedicated to the
county courthouse and the school. That building is
clearly visible in an early view of the city that is notably
devoid of church buildings.5

The founders’ goals created a community persona
that sets New Ulm apart from the Minnesota towns
founded by land speculators or railroad companies.
These cities were typically entrepreneurial develop-
ments focused on land sales and the production and
transportation of goods. These practical factors were
certainly part of New Ulm’s formative years. Yet, like the
leaders of utopian communities such as Bethlehem,
Pennsylvania, Bishop Hill, Illinois, or Salt Lake City,
Utah, the New Ulm founders aspired to establish a town
with a defined philosophical, economic, and social char-
acter. Even though New Ulm did not develop exactly as
planned, its founders’ strong community vision stimu-
lated a planning effort whose effects have endured.6

Today’s visitors to New Ulm often comment on the
city’s neat appearance and distinctive character. While
scores of the lots originally intended as four-acre gar-
dens have been lost to new schools, housing, and other
developments, the original plat’s parks, avenues, and
building lots survive.7 Walking the streets of the Turners’
city plan, one can subtly, but ever so surely, gain a very
real sense of the territorial ideology that birthed a city. ❑
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